
 
 
To: MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Councillors Blackwell (Chair), C.White (Vice-Chair), 
Connolly, Duck, Farr, Gray, Lockwood, Mansfield, Morrow, 
Prew, Ridge and Shiner 
 
Substitute Councillors: Bloore, Botten and Mills 
 

for any enquiries, please contact: 
customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk 

01883 722000 

C.C. All Other Members of the Council 2 June 2021 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, 10TH JUNE, 2021 AT 7.30 PM 
 
The agenda for this meeting of the Committee to be held in the Council Chamber - Council Offices, 
Station Road East, Oxted is set out below.  If a member of the Committee is unable to attend the 
meeting, please notify officers accordingly. 
 
Available seating in the public gallery will be limited due to social distancing requirements and any 
members of the public who wish to attend should e-mail democraticservices@tandridge.gov.uk in 
advance. Unfortunately, in the current circumstances, we may not be able to accommodate all 
requests to attend in person. However, the meeting will be webcast and can be viewed via the 
Council’s website. This can be viewed live and as a recording after the meeting.    
 
Should Members require clarification about any item of business, they are urged to contact officers 
before the meeting. In this respect, reports contain authors’ names and contact details. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
Jackie King  
Acting Chief Executive 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies for absence (if any)   
 
2. Declarations of interest   
 

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or as soon as 
possible thereafter: 
 

(i) any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) and / or 
 

(ii) other interests arising under the Code of Conduct 
 
in respect of any item(s) of business being considered at the meeting. Anyone with a DPI 
must, unless a dispensation has been granted, withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of the relevant item of business.  If in doubt, advice should be sought from the 
Monitoring Officer or her staff prior to the meeting.  
 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on the 29th April 2021  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

To approve as a correct record 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@tandridge.gov.uk


 

4. Minutes of the meeting held on the 27th May 2021  (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

To approve as a correct record 
 

5. To deal with any questions submitted under Standing Order 30   
 
6. Applications for consideration by committee  (Pages 9 - 16) 
 

6.1 2021/173 - 17 Landscape Road, Warlingham, Surrey, CR6 9JB  (Pages 17 - 36) 
 
6.2 2021/137 - 13 Wolf's Wood, Hurst Green Oxted, RH8 0HN  (Pages 37 - 46) 
 

7. Recent appeal decisions received   
 

To receive a verbal update from officers relating to appeal decisions by the Planning 
Inspectorate resulting from previous committee decisions. 
 

8. Any other business which the Chairman is of the opinion should be considered at 
the meeting as a matter of urgency   

 
 



 

 

TANDRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes and report to Council of the virtual meeting of the Committee held on the 29th April 
2021 at 7.30pm. 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Black (Chair), Bloore (Vice-Chair), Blackwell (Vice-Chair), 

Duck, Farr, Fitzgerald, Gray, Lockwood, Mansfield, Morrow and C.White 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Bourne, Connolly, M.Cooper, Davies, Mills, Ridge and 

N.White 

 

329. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 4TH MARCH 2021  
 
These were approved as a correct record.  
 

330. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Blackwell declared a non-pecuniary interest for agenda item 5.4 (2020/2160 - 
Cherrywood, Brassey Road, Limpsfield – Minute 334 below) on the basis that she was 
acquainted with the applicant. She did not take part in the debate or the vote and turned her 
video off and muted her microphone for the duration of the item.  
 
Councillors Black and Fitzgerald advised that they had been lobbied in respect of some of the 
agenda items but would consider the applications afresh with an open mind.   
 
Councillor Gray advised that he had been lobbied by an objector to the planning application 
under agenda item 5.2 (2020/1404 – Hut 1, Harestone Drive, Caterham – Minute 332 below) 
but would consider the application afresh with an open mind.  
 

331. 2021/20 - THE CASTLE INN, MILLERS LANE, OUTWOOD  
RH1 5QB  
 
The Committee considered an application for 
 

 alterations and change of use from ‘drinking establishment’ to C3 (dwelling house); and  
 

 the provision of associated amenity and parking areas. 
 
The officer recommendation was to permit, subject to conditions.  
 
A recording of representations from Patrick Jenn, an objector, was replayed to the Committee. 
 
A recording of representations from Councillor Jane Howard of Outwood Parish Council, an 
objector, was replayed to the Committee. 
 
A recording of representations from James Collins, the agent acting on behalf of the applicant, 
was replayed to the Committee. 
Councillor Bourne proposed the following reason for refusal: 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2 

 
 

“The proposal would result in the loss of a community facility. This is against the principle 
set out in the NPPF 2019 ‘supporting prosperous rural economies’ (paragraph 83D) where 
planning policy and decisions should enable the retention of community facilities such as 
public houses. It has not been demonstrated that there is no longer a demand for the 
facility and, due to the business ceasing to trade for an extended period, it cannot be 
demonstrated that it cannot be made financially viable in future under Policy DP18 of the 
Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 - Detailed Policies 2014.”   

 
This was moved by Councillor C.White and seconded by Councillor Fitzgerald. Upon being put 
to the vote, the motion was carried.  
 
 R E S O L V E D – that planning permission be refused. 
 

332. 2020/1404 - HUT, 1 HARESTONE DRIVE, CATERHAM CR3 6YQ  
 
The Committee considered an application for the demolition of office buildings; erection of 5 x 
two-storey detached dwellings; the construction of an access road from Harestone Drive; and 
provision of associated parking and landscaping.  
 
The Officer recommendation was to permit, subject to conditions. 
 
A recording of representations from Councillor Jenny Gaffney of Caterham Valley Parish 
Council, an objector, was replayed to the Committee. 
 
A recording of representations from Peter Morgan, the agent acting on behalf of the applicant, 
was replayed to the Committee. 
  
 R E S O L V E D – that planning permission be granted, subject to conditions. 
 

333. 2020/2236 - 2 CROMWELL HALL FARM COTTAGES, FELCOURT 
ROAD, FELCOURT RH19 2JU  
 
The Committee considered an application for the erection of a building for plant and machinery 
storage.  
 
The Officer recommendation was to permit, subject to conditions. 
 
Councillor Lockwood, seconded by Councillor Duck, proposed the following reasons for refusal: 
 
(i) The outbuilding would constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt for which no 

very special circumstances exist to clearly outweigh the harm by reason of 
inappropriateness and harm to openness as previously concluded by the Inspector’s 
decision. The application has not materially changed and therefore significant weight 
should be given to the previous dismissed appeal. As such the proposal is contrary to 
Policies DP10, DP13 and DP14 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 
2014 and the National Planning Policy Framework (2019). 

  
(ii) The outbuilding, by reason of the design and appearance, would not remain in keeping with 

the character of the rural locality. Furthermore, the external appearance would not be 
required for the intended use with limited evidence supplied for the proposed purpose. As 
such, the proposal is contrary to Policies DP7 or the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – 
Detailed Policies 2014 , CSP18 and CSP21 of the Core Strategy 2008 and the National 
Planning Policy Framework(2019). 

Page 4



3 

 
 

Upon being put to separate votes, both motions were lost.  
 
 R E S O L V E D – that planning permission be granted, subject to conditions. 
 

334. 2020/2161 - CHERRYWOOD, BRASSEY ROAD, LIMPSFIELD 
RH8 0ET  
 
The Committee considered an application for the: 
 

 erection of a part single-storey / part two-storey front extension, incorporating a front 
and side roof terrace; and  
 

 erection of a single storey rear extension. 
  
The officer recommendation was to permit.  
 
Councillor Lockwood, seconded by Councillor Duck, proposed that determination of the 
application be deferred, pending a site visit. Upon being put to the vote, the motion was lost.  
 
Councillor Lockwood, seconded by Councillor Duck, proposed that the application be refused 
for the following reason: 
 
“The proposal, by reason of the siting of the part single-storey / part two-storey extension and 
ground levels, would cause overlooking of Cherrywood from the adjacent property and 
driveway, contrary to Policy DP7 of the Tandridge District Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 
(2014) and Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy (2008).” 
 
  Upon being put to the vote, the motion was lost. 
 
 R E S O L V E D – that planning permission be granted. 
 

335. 2020/2291 - 9 WOODLANDS DRIVE, SOUTH GODSTONE RH9 
8HU  
 
The Committee considered an application for the erection of a single-story side extension.  
 
 R E S O L V E D – that planning permission be granted. 
 

336. 2021/137 - 13 WOLF'S WOOD, HURST GREEN RH8 0HN  
 
This item was withdrawn from the agenda and would be reported to a future meeting. 
 
 
Rising 10.32 pm 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

TANDRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL   
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes and report to Council of the meeting of the Committee held in the Barn Theatre, 
Bluehouse Lane, Oxted on the 27 May 2021 at 9.26 pm 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Blackwell, Connolly, Duck, Farr, Gray, Lockwood, Mansfield, 

Morrow, Prew, Ridge, Shiner and C.White 

  

 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR 2021/22  
 
 R E S O L V E D – that Councillor Blackwell be elected Chair of the committee for the 
 2021/22 municipal year. 
 

2. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR FOR 2021/22  
 
 R E S O L V E D – that Councillor Colin White be elected Vice-Chair of the committee for 
 the 2021/22 municipal year. 
 

 
Rising 9.27 pm 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

ON 10 JUNE 2021 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6 
 

APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE 
 
To consider the application detailed in item 6.1 to 6.2 
 
Notes: 
 
(i) All letters received commenting on applications adversely or otherwise will be available in the 

Council Chamber for inspection by Members prior to the meeting.  Summaries of the public 
responses to applications are included in the reports although Members should note that 
non-planning comments are not included. 

 
(ii) Arrangements for public participation in respect of the applications will be dealt with 

immediately prior to the commencement of the meeting. 
 

 
Contacts:  
 
Louise Wesson, Head of Planning – 01883 732738 
Email: lwesson@tandridge.gov.uk  
 
Laura Field, Principal Planning Officer – 01883 732739 
Email: lfield@tandridge.gov.uk  
 
Lidia Harrison, Legal Specialist – 01883 732740 
Email: lharrison@tandridge.gov.uk 
  
Background papers: Surrey Waste Plan 2008; Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy 2011; The 

Tandridge Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2008; The Tandridge 
Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014; Woldingham Neighbourhood 
Plan 2016; The Harestone Valley and Woldingham Design Guidance 
Supplementary Planning Documents 2011; Village Design Statement for 
Lingfield – Supplementary Planning Guidance; Woldingham Village Design 
Statement – Supplementary Planning Guidance; Conservation Area 
Appraisal of the Bletchingley Conservation Area Supplementary Planning 
Guidance; Limpsfield Neighbourhood Plan 2019 

 
Government Advice: National Planning Policy Framework  

 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

mailto:lwesson@tandridge.gov.uk
mailto:lfield@tandridge.gov.uk
mailto:lharrison@tandridge.gov.uk


 
 

 

 

  

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 10 JUNE 2021 – RECOMMENDATIONS 

ITEM 
NO. 

APPLICATION 
NO. 

SITE ADDRESS APPLICATION DETAILS RECOMMENDATION 

 

6.1 2021/173 17 Landscape 
Road, 
Warlingham, 
Surrey, CR6 9JB 

Demolition of existing building and 
construction of a three-storey building 
comprising 10 flats, private and 
communal amenity space, parking 
provision, hard and soft landscaping 
and construction of a single storey 
refuse and cycle store. 

PERMIT subject to 
conditions 

6.2 2021/137 13 Wolf’s Wood, 
Hurst Green 
Oxted, RH8 0HN 

Erection of vehicle crossover and 
hardstanding. 

Resolution to 
PERMIT subject to 
Full Council 

Page 10



 
 

 

SUMMARY OF RELEVANT POLICIES & NATIONAL ADVICE FOR  
PLANNING APPLICATIONS IN APPENDIX A. 

 
Core Strategy 
 
Policy CSP1 sets several strategic aims in terms of the location of development.  It 
seeks to promote sustainable patterns of travel, make the best use of land within the 
existing built-up areas. 
 
Policy CSP2 sets out the Council’s approach to housing supply. 
 
Policy CSP3 seeks to manage the delivery of housing when the Council exceeds its 
rolling 5-year supply by more than 20%.  When such an oversupply exists the Council 
will refuse development of unidentified residential garden land sites of 5 units and 
above or site larger than 0.2ha where the number of dwellings is unknown.  Account 
must be taken of smaller sites forming parts of larger sites and infrastructure provision 
as well as significant social or community benefits. 
 
Policy CSP4 is an interim holding policy pending the adoption of a substitute policy in 
an Affordable Housing DPD.  It sets a threshold within built up areas of 15 units or 
more or sites in excess of 0.5ha and within rural areas of 10 units or more.  The policy 
requires that up to 34% of units would be affordable in these cases with the actual 
provision negotiated on a site by site basis.  There is a requirement that up to 75% of 
the affordable housing will be provided in the form of social rented or intermediate or 
a mix of both. 
 
Policy CSP5 refers to rural exception sites and states that exceptionally, land adjoining 
or closely related to the defined rural settlements which would otherwise be considered 
inappropriate for development may be developer in order to provide affordable housing 
subject to certain criteria.   
 
Policy CSP7 requires sites providing 5 units or more to contain and appropriate mix of 
dwelling sizes in accordance with identified needs. 
 
Policy CSP8 sets out the Council’s approach to the provision of Extra Care Housing, 
including its targets for such provision.  
 
Policy CSP9 sets out the criteria for assessing suitable Gypsy and Traveller sites to 
meet unexpected and proven need. 
 
Policy CSP11 sets out the Council’s approach to infrastructure and service provision. 
 
Policy CSP12 seeks to manage travel demand by requiring preference to walking, 
cycling and public transport; infrastructure improvements where required and use of 
adopted highway design standards and parking standards. 
 
Policy CSP13 seeks to retain existing cultural, community, recreational, sport and open 
space facilities and encourage new or improved facilities. 
 
Policy CSP14 seeks to encourage all new build or residential conversions meet Code 
level 3 as set out in the Code for Sustainable Homes and that commercial development 
with a floor area over 500sq m will be required to meet BREEAM “Very Good” standard.  
On site renewables are also required. 
 

Page 11



 
 

 

Policy CSP15 seeks to ensure that the design and layout of development is safe and 
secure, that new buildings are adaptable for the disabled and elderly, that information 
technology can be included, that all development is accessible to all groups and that 
grey water recycling and/or segregated surface and foul water disposal is used. 
 
Policy CSP16 sets out the Council’s position on aviation development in the District 
with specific reference to its position on development at Redhill Aerodrome.   
 
Policy CSP17 requires that biodiversity is taken into account. 
 
Policy CSP18 seeks to ensure that developments have a high standard of design 
respecting local character, setting and context.  Amenities of existing occupiers must 
be respected.  Wooded hillsides will be respected and green space within built up 
areas protected.  Development on the edge of the Green Belt must not harm the Green 
Belt. 
 
Policy CSP19 sets a range of densities for new development. 
 
Policy CSP20 sets out the Council’s principles for the conservation and enhancement 
of the AONBs and AGLVs. 
 
Policy CSP21 states that the character and distinctiveness of the District’s landscapes 
and countryside will be protected, and new development will be required to conserve 
ad enhance landscape character. 
 
Policy CSP22 sets out how the Council will seek to develop a sustainable economy. 
 
Policy CSP23 set out specific aims for the town centres of Caterham Valley and Oxted. 
 
Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies – 2014  
 
Policy DP1 sets out the general presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
 
Policy DP2 sets out the policies for development in the town centres, including within 
the primary and secondary shopping frontages 
 
Policy DP3 sets out the policies for development in local centres, other centres and 
villages 
 
Policy DP4 sets out the circumstances under which proposals for the alternative use 
of commercial and industrial sites will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP5 sets out criteria for assessing whether proposals are acceptable in relation 
to highway safety and design. 
 
Policy DP6 sets out criteria for assessing proposals for telecommunications 
infrastructure.  
 
Policy DP7 is a general policy for all new development.  It outlines that development 
should be appropriate to the character of the area, provide sufficient parking, safeguard 
amenity and safeguard assets, resources and the environment, including trees.  
 
Policy DP8 sets out a number of criteria for assessing whether the redevelopment of 
residential garden land will be acceptable. 
 

Page 12



 
 

 

Policy DP9 sets out the circumstances in which the erection of gates, walls and other 
means of enclosure will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP10 confirms the general presumption against inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt and states that inappropriate development will only be permitted where 
very special circumstances exist which clearly outweigh the potential harm to the 
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and any other harm.  
 
Policy DP11 sets out the circumstances in which development in the Larger Rural 
Settlements will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP12 sets out the circumstances in which development in the Defined Villages 
in the Green Belt will be permitted.  
 
Policy DP13 sets out the exceptions to the Green Belt presumption against 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and the circumstances in which new 
buildings and facilities, extensions and alterations, replacement of buildings, infill, 
partial or complete redevelopment and the re-use of buildings will be permitted.  
 
Policy DP14 sets out a number of criteria for assessing proposals for garages and 
other ancillary domestic buildings in the Green Belt. 
 
Policy DP15 sets out criteria for assessing proposals for agricultural workers’ dwellings 
in the Green Belt. 
 
Policy DP16 states that the removal of agricultural occupancy conditions will be 
permitted where the Council is satisfied that there is no longer a need for such 
accommodation in the locality. 
 
Policy DP17 sets out criteria for assessing proposals for equestrian facilities.  
 
Policy DP18 sets out the circumstances in which development involving the loss of 
premises or land used as a community facility will be permitted. 
 
Policy DP19 deals with biodiversity, geological conservation and green infrastructure. 
 
Policy DP20 sets out the general presumption in favour of development proposals 
which protect, preserve or enhance the interest and significance of heritage assets and 
the historic environment. 
 
Policy DP21 deals with sustainable water management, and sets out criteria for 
assessing development in relation to water quality, ecology and hydromorphology, and 
flood risk. 
 
Policy DP22 sets out criteria for assessing and mitigating against contamination, 
hazards and pollution including noise.  
 
Woldingham Neighbourhood Plan 2016  
 
Policy L1 is a general design policy for new development  
 
Policy L2 sets out criteria for assessing new development proposals in relation to the 
Woldingham Character Areas  
 
Policy L3 relates to landscape character 

Page 13



 
 

 

 
Policy L4 relates to proposals for new community facilities 
 
Policy L5 relates to development proposals for The Crescent and its regeneration 
 
Policy L6 seeks to support improvements to the accessibility of Woldingham Station 
 
Policy L7 relates to the development of broadband and mobile communications 
infrastructure 
 
Policy L8 seeks to safeguard a number of Local Green Spaces as designated by the 
Plan  
 
Policy C1 seeks to promote residents’ safety 
 
Policy C2 seeks to support proposals and projects which improve local transport 
services 
 
Policy C3 supports the improvement of pedestrian and cycle routes 
 
Policy C4 supports proposals which promote networking and residents’ involvement 
on local societies and organisations 
 
Limpsfield Neighbourhood Plan 2019 
 
Policy LN1 sets out a spatial strategy for the Parish. 
 
Policy LN2 requires that all new development provides an appropriate mix of housing 
types and size, including smaller units (3 bedrooms or fewer) for sites over a certain 
size. 
 
Policy LN3 seeks a high quality of design, reflecting the distinctive character of 
particular areas of the Parish. 
 
Policy LN4 relates to new development in the Limpsfield Conservation Area. 
 
Policy LN5 relates to landscape character. 
 
Policy LN6 identifies a number of Local Green Spaces, and seeks to protect their use. 
 
Policy LN8 seeks to promote biodiversity. 
 
Policy LN9 relates to business and employment, including in relation to Oxted town 
centre. 
 
Policy LN10 relates to the rural economy. 
 
Policy LN11 seeks to protect community services in Oxted town centre.  
 
Policy LN12 seeks to protect community services in Limpsfield Village and other parts 
of the Parish.  
 
Policy LN13 supports sustainable forms of transport.  
 
Policy LN14 supports the provision of super-fast broadband.  

Page 14



 
 

 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) and Supplementary Planning 
Guidance (SPGs) 
 
SPG (Lingfield Village Design Statement), adopted in January 2002, seeks to ensure 
that the village retains its individuality and character through future development both 
large and small.  It provides general guidelines for new development and requires 
amongst other things that the design of new buildings should be sympathetic to the 
style of buildings in the locality both in size and materials.  
 
SPG (Woldingham Village Design Statement) adopted in September 2005 provides 
guidance for development within Woldingham.  Residential extensions should respect 
the size and proportions of the original house and plot.  Boundary treatments should 
maintain the rural street scene, imposing entrances are out of keeping, and front 
boundaries should be screened with plantings or have low open wooded fences. 
 
SPD (Woldingham Design Guidance) adopted March 2011 and seeks to; promote 
good design, protect and enhance the high quality character of the area, and to apply 
design principles on a sub-area basis to maintain and reinforce character. 
 
SPD (Harestone Valley Design Guidance) adopted March 2011 and seeks to; promote 
good design, protect and enhance the high quality character of the area, and to apply 
design principles on a sub-area basis to maintain and reinforce character. 
 
SPD (Tandridge Parking Standards) adopted September 2012 sets out standards for 
residential and non-residential vehicular parking and standards for bicycle parking.  
 
SPD (Tandridge Trees and Soft Landscaping) adopted November 2017 sets out the 
Council’s approach to the integration of new and existing trees and soft landscaping 
into new development, and seeks to ensure that trees are adequately considered 
throughout the development process.   
 
National Advice 

 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) constitutes guidance for local 
planning authorities and decision-takers both in drawing up plans and as 
a material consideration in determining applications. It sets out the Government’s 
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. It states that 
there are three dimensions to sustainable development: economic, social and 
environmental, and confirms the presumption in favour of sustainable forms of 
development which it states should be seen as a golden thread running through both 
plan-making and decision-taking. 
 
The Government has also published national Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 
which is available online and covers a number of policy areas and topics.  
 
 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



ITEM 6.1 
 
Application: TA/2021/173 
Location: 17 Landscape Road, Warlingham, Surrey, CR6 9JB 
Proposal: Demolition of existing building and construction of a three-storey 

building comprising 10 flats, private and communal amenity space, 
parking provision, hard and soft landscaping and construction of a single 
storey refuse and cycle store. 

Ward: Warlingham West 
 
Decision Level: Planning Committee 
 
 
Constraints – Biggin Hill Safeguarding Area, Groundwater Protection Area, SPA, TPO within 
10m, AHAP, AWOOD within 500m, ASAC, Public Footpath 315, 1 in 1000-year surface water 
flood area, Gatwick Safeguarding (90m) 
 
RECOMMENDATION:                  PERMIT subject to conditions                    
 
This application has been referred to Committee for decision by Cllr Bloore. 
 
Summary 
 

1. The proposal is for the demolition of existing building and construction of a three-storey 
building comprising 10 flats, private and communal amenity space, parking provision, 
hard and soft landscaping and construction of a single storey refuse and cycle store. 
The proposal would respect the character and appearance of the prevailing area. It 
would also respect the local context and there would be no significant harm to 
neighbouring amenities. Furthermore, there would be no significant impact upon the 
wider highway network and the renewable energy provision would be acceptable. It is 
therefore recommended that this application is granted planning permission. 

 
Site Description 
 

2. The site is located within the urban area of Warlingham which is a ‘Category 1 
Settlement’ as defined by Core Strategy Policy CSP1. Beyond the site lies arable land 
and areas of ancient woodland. The site is situated within an area with low risk of 
surface water flooding. 
 

3. The site comprises a corner plot on the junction of Narrow Lane and Landscape Road 
within the urban area of Warlingham. The site contains a 3-storey building with roof 
space accommodation which is currently used as four flats. The site is bounded to the 
east by Narrow Lane, to the south by Landscape Road and to the west and north by 
residential properties at number 15 Landscape Road and number 6 Narrow Lane 
respectively.  There are a number of trees located along the Narrow Lane and 
Landscape Road frontages of the site with a large apron of hardstanding area to the 
south (front) of the building.   
 

4. The surrounding area is predominantly of suburban nature albeit dense rural, 
characterised by a mix of houses and flats set back from the road with front gardens, 
with generous gaps between the buildings. The existing residential properties in the 
immediate locality consist of large detached properties of varying character, form and 
design set within spacious plots of sylvan nature.  
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6.1



Relevant History  
 

5. 2006/573 – Erection of single storey rear extension. Approved on 14.06.2006 
 
Key Issues 
 

6. The application site lies within the urban area of Warlingham.  The key issues are the 
effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area; the effect of the 
proposal on highway safety; amenities of neighbouring residents and the living 
conditions of the future occupants of the development, parking provision, trees and 
landscaping, housing provision and renewable energy. 
 

Proposal 
 

7. Planning permission is sought for the demolition of existing building and construction 
of a three-storey building comprising 10 flats, private and communal amenity space, 
parking provision, hard and soft landscaping and construction of a single storey refuse 
and cycle store.  The proposed development would comprise 8 x 2 bed four persons 
and 2 x 1 bed two persons flats.  The proposed building would be rectangular in shape 
and would measure approximately 23.5m wide at the frontage, 19m deep and eaves 
and ridge height of approximately 6m and 10m respectively. The proposed flats would 
be arranged over three floors with four flats each on the ground and first floor and two 
flats on the second floor. The proposed external materials would be red brick, plain 
clay roof tiles with dark grey aluminium doors and windows. 
 

8. The proposal includes also the erection of two, detached single-storey structures at 
the Landscape Road frontage of the site to provide a refuse store and cycle store. The 
existing vehicular access off Landscape Road frontage would be utilised leading onto 
a hardstanding area in front of the building for parking of vehicles. The application is 
accompanied by Arboricultural Report, Sustainability Statement and Planning 
Statement, Design and Access Statement and Daylight and Sunlight Assessment. 
 
 

Development Plan Policy 
 

9. Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 – Policies CSP1, CSP2, CSP3, CSP7, CSP12, 
CSP14, CSP15, CSP17, CSP18 and CSP19 

 
10. Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014 – Policies DP1, DP7, DP8, DP9, 

DP19, DP21 and DP22 
 

11. Woldingham Neighbourhood Plan 2016 – Not applicable  
 

12. Limpsfield Neighbourhood Plan 2019 – Not applicable 
 

13. Caterham, Chaldon and Whyteleafe Neighbourhood Plan – post referendum version 
(June 2021) – Not applicable 
 

14.  Emerging Tandridge Local Plan 2033 – Policies – TLP01, TLP02, TLP06, TLP10, 
TLP18, TLP19, TLP30, TLP32, TLP34, TLP35, TLP37, TLP45, TLP47, TLP48, TLP49, 
TLP50. 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs), Supplementary Planning Guidance 
(SPGs) and non-statutory guidance 
 

Page 18



15. Tandridge Parking Standards SPD (2012) 
 

16. Tandridge Trees and Soft Landscaping SPD (2017) 
 

17. Surrey Design Guide (2002) 
 
National Advice 
 

18. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) 
 

19. Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)  
 

20. National Design Guide (2019) 
 
Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

21. County Highway Authority – Commented as follows: The site is situated within an 
unsustainable location and it is unlikely that residents of the proposed development 
would walk to the rail station, residents of the proposed residential use would therefore 
be heavily dependent on the private car for access to normal day to day services and 
facilities hence the development would be contrary to the sustainable transport 
objectives of the NPPF and Policy CS1 of the Core Strategy.  Notwithstanding the 
above the Highway Authority acknowledges that there are three dimensions to 
sustainable development - economic, social and environmental - hence the 
sustainability of the site should not be assessed purely in terms of transport mode and 
distance. It is also acknowledged that planning policy does permit the conversion and 
re-use of buildings in the Green Belt and hence some developments will not be able to 
meet the requirements of locational and transport policies. Therefore, it is for the Local 
Planning Authority to weigh up the CHA's sustainable transport advice against the 
other policies in the NPPF and the Core Strategy particularly those relating to rural 
areas, in order to determine whether or not the proposed development would be 
sustainable in its wider sense. 
 

22. Warlingham Parish Council - Objects to the proposal on the following grounds: 
 

 The proposed design and scale of the development is not in keeping with the 
prevailing character of the surrounding area and existing street scene. 

 The proposed design does not reflect the normal interpretation of 2-storey 
development with loft accommodation; 

 The loss of mature trees will impact on the establish character and appearance 
of the area; 

 The proposed development would lead to the intensification of the plot leading 
to overdevelopment of the site; 

 Overlooking and loss of privacy particularly on number 6 Narrow Lane; 

 Inadequate car parking provision within the site; 

 Impact on the future occupiers of the flats with bedrooms at the rear being 
obscure glazed and fixed shut which could also be a potential breach of 
Building Regulations. 
 

23. The Environment Agency - Due to the scale, nature and setting of this proposal and 
the supporting information submitted, we do not object to the proposal in principle 
subject to the imposition of recommended conditions. 
 

Page 19



24. Surrey County Flood Authority -  We are not satisfied that the proposed drainage 
scheme meets the requirements set out in the documents accompanying the 
application due to insufficient information however, in the event that planning 
permission be granted by the Local planning Authority, suitably worded conditions 
should be applied to ensure that the SuDS Scheme is properly implemented and 
maintained throughout the lifetime of the development. 
 

25. Environmental Health Officer - No objection 
 

26. Tree Officer - There are a number of trees to be removed, particularly from the 
frontage. However, none of these trees are of such importance in a policy sense that 
an objection could be sustained in my view. In terms of the retained trees, which are 
growing on the boundaries, there are several of high quality, and the largest (T20 Oak) 
will be quite tight with new building and works are required within the root protection 
area. However, again, whilst this is not an ideal relationship, I do not consider it to be 
so bad that an objection should be raised. Furthermore, the submitted arboricultural 
details does demonstrate how the trees can be successfully protected during 
construction. 
 
 

Other Representations 
 

27. Third Party Comments: 
 

 Whilst not opposed to improvements of the area we feel that 10 apartments would lead 
to overdevelopment of the site; 

 Impact on the character and appearance of the area; 

 Excessive traffic impact due to insufficient parking provision; 

 Noise and disturbance from people coming and going in the day and night; 

 Overlooking and loss of privacy due to position of balconies and windows; 

 The site is within an unsustainable location. 
 
 

Principle of development 
 

28. Core Strategy Policy CSP1 identifies Warlingham as an urban area and a Category 1 
Settlement where development will take place in order to promote sustainable patterns 
of travel and in order to make the best use of previously developed land and where 
there is a choice of mode of transport available. and where the distance to travel to 
services is minimised.  Furthermore, there is capacity within existing infrastructure to 
accommodate the proposed development and there are no physical or environmental 
constraints to restrict development on the land. The proposed development is therefore 
acceptable in principle with regard to the location of the development and Core 
Strategy Policy CSP1. 
 

29. Notwithstanding the fact that the principle of development is considered acceptable an 
assessment of the scheme against policies having regard to matters including design, 
parking, and means of access as well as amenity of the occupiers of adjoining 
premises, renewable energy has to be considered. 
 
 

Design, scale and appearance in the street scene 
 

Page 20



30. The National Planning Policy Framework states that good design is a key aspect of 
sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute 
positively to making places better for people. Planning decisions should aim to ensure 
that developments add to the overall quality of the area; respond to local character and 
history; reflect the identity of local surroundings and materials; are visually attractive 
as a result of good architecture and appropriate landscaping. Permission should be 
refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for 
improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions. 
 

31. Local Plan policies DP7 and DP8 require high quality design in all new development 
and for proposals to respect and relate to the character and context of their location. 
These policies are in addition to the Surrey Design Guidance (SDG) which requires 
that residential development should be complementary in design and be subordinate 
in size and scale to the existing dwelling. The impact of a development is assessed 
giving regard to the bulk, scale and design of the proposal and how it harmonises with 
the site and the wider locality. 
 

32. Landscape Road is an established residential area characterised by predominantly 
detached dwellings within large plots in a variety of architectural styles. Dwellings in 
Landscape Road are set back from the highway with distinctive deep grass verges and 
linear layout pattern of development creating a sense of openness. There has been 
some recent development in the area, where smaller dwellings have been extended 
or replaced by larger buildings. The proposed development is considered in light of 
those similar developments in the vicinity in addition to the established character of the 
area. It must be noted that the current proposal has benefitted from pre-application 
advice where guidance was given to the applicant in respect of design, scale and 
impact on the general street scene and the wider locality. 
 

33. It is recognised that the proposal would redevelop the existing residential site. In terms 
of prevailing plot sizes, the site itself is on the large side and already accommodates a 
flatted development. There are numerous examples of flats in the vicinity and this 
proposal would respect that existing form and add to the variety of development locally 
whilst achieving additional housing in a highly sustainable area. The gardens would be 
set back from the frontages and provide occupants useable space for their enjoyment. 

 
34. The proposal is to replace the existing building with a three-storey block comprising of 

10 flats (the third storey would be contained primarily within the roof). The building 
would sit roughly centrally in the plot, with landscaped areas to the sides and rear and 
a parking forecourt with cycling and refuse storage. The existing building has a height 
of circa 10.75m whilst the new building would have a height of circa 11m. The footprint 
would be greater, with the building extending notably further towards the Narrow Lane 
boundary but still retaining a separation of approximately 12.5m min.   
 

35. With regards to the positioning of the building, the proposed building line would respect 
both Landscape Road and Narrow Lane which already feature staggers which 
contribute to the character of the area as a non-planned residential area. Both the 
building and parking area would be enveloped by generous green spaces, forming 
both gardens and communal areas which is considered important due to the visual 
prominence of the site. Whilst the density of the site and size of building would 
increase, the design is considerate and has achieved a good balanced between built 
form and a verdant setting.  It is considered in this regard that the proposed building 
would not result in an overdevelopment of the site or a cramped appearance in the 
locality.  
 

Page 21



36. The proposed replacement building has been designed in cognisance with the Arts 
and Craft Movement which is prevalent in the locality.  The building has been designed 
with stepped ridge and eave heights at the frontages of Landscape Road and Narrow 
Lane to create visual interest including balconies on first and second floor levels. The 
design is traditional and would harmonise with the existing variety of building styles 
and designs in the locality. It would have projecting gable end elements and other 
stylistic features including dormer windows, front balconies, decorative window cills 
and hanging tiles that would provide visual interest and a positive impact in the street 
scene in this regard. The eave height of the building drops at the rear elevation to 
respond to the scale of the existing dwellinghouse at number 6 Narrow Lane, 
subservient to the building which assist in reducing the bulk of the building. 
Furthermore, the proposed external materials would appear appropriate to the site and 
its setting, however details/samples could be provided to the Council prior to 
construction and this could be managed by way of planning condition in the event that 
planning permission is granted. 
 

37. Overall, the design, size and siting of the proposed building is considered to be high 
quality and with attributes that would ensure it assimilates well into the existing 
streetscene and local environment, in accordance with the Development Plan.   
 

Impact on residential amenities of existing and future occupiers 
 

38. The impact of the proposed development on residential amenity of neighbouring 
dwellings and the amenities of the future occupants is considered in terms of the 
impact on access to day/sun/sky light and privacy, outlook and overbearing. Policy 
CSP18 of the Core Strategy and DP7 of the Local Plan apply and seek to provide good 
standard of design in all new development.  The Surrey Design Guide SDG 
supplements Policy DP7 and expects that development should not cause loss of light 
or be unduly dominant from adjoining properties, as a result of either the length of 
projection, the height or the proximity of the development. The Policy reflects the 
guidance at paragraph 127(f) of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019, which 
seeks amongst other things to create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible 
and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing 
and future users of development. 
 

39. The dwellings potentially most impacted by the proposal would be the neighbouring 
occupiers at No. 15 Landscape Road, and No. 6 Narrow Lane which are situated to 
the immediate west and north of the site respectively. The proposed development 
would be sited at a distance of approximately 7.6m from the existing shared boundary 
with No. 15 Landscape Road which has a side-to-side relationship with the proposed 
building.  There would be two windows on the flank wall of the proposed building at 
first floor level facing onto the side of this property which serves an open-plan 
kitchen/dining/living room area to Flat 6.  The other window would be located on the 
recessed section of the flank wall serving Flat 5 which is shown on the plan as 
obscured glazed window with no openable section below 1.75m from the finished floor 
level.  It is considered that the location of these windows, orientation and the distance 
between these properties would not lead to any significant loss of privacy and 
overlooking on the current level of amenity enjoyed the occupiers of this dwellinghouse 
to warrant the refusal of planning permission. 
 

40.  With regard to the impact on number 6 Narrow Lane, it is acknowledged that this 
property is a detached bungalow with a frontage to Narrow Lane and a side to rear 
relationship with the application property.  Currently, there are significant trees and 
vegetation along the shared boundary.  The proposed building would be sited at a 
distance of approximately 5.2m from the shared boundary and by a distance of 

Page 22



approximately 12.2m from the flank wall of number 6 Narrow Lane. Four windows are 
proposed on the first-floor rear elevation facing this property which do not meet the 
separation distance of 22m specified in the SDG.  As a result, the applicant is 
proposing to have these windows obscure glazed, fixed shut and not capable of 
opening below 1.75m from the finished floor level which ensures no direct overlooking 
would result.  It must also be noted there are currently 3 windows to the rear 
elevation of the existing building so, whilst the number has increased by 1, these 
windows are mainly opaque thus would not result in any significant loss of privacy 
and overlooking on the current level of amenity enjoyed by the occupants of 6 
Narrow Lane.  Furthermore, the existing dense trees and vegetation would reduce 
the impact of the development although there is no guarantee that these will 
remain in perpetuity of the development. It is considered that although the 
perception of overlooking by virtue of proximity will remain, in reality this will not 
be the case and can be conditioned in the event that planning permission is granted 
to prevent actual overlooking. 
 

41. To further support the scheme, a daylight and sunlight assessment prepared by 
Herrington Consulting Limited has been submitted with the application.  The 
assessment confirms number 15 Landscape Road and number 6 Narrow Lane as the 
most sensitive receptors of the development that would not be significantly affected 
with regard to the amount of daylight and sunlight which they currently enjoy within 
their amenity areas and habitable rooms. 
 

42. With regard to the impact on residential amenities of the future occupiers of the 
proposed development, the government guidance in the NPPF 2019 (paragraph 
127(f)) seeks high standard of amenity for existing and future users of development. It 
is clear that the proposed development has been designed around the constraints of 
the site. The fenestration arrangements would be sufficient to provide natural light for 
all rooms associated with the proposed flats however outlook from bedroom 2 of Flat 
7 on the rear elevation may not provide adequate outlook for the future occupant.  
Furthermore, the proposed internal gross floorspace area for 2-bed, four persons 
dwelling of between 73.2sqm and 1-bed, 2 persons dwelling of 57.4sqm are 
considered acceptable and would exceed the required space standards contained 
within the Nationally Described Space Standards with regards to internal floor space. 
The proposed amenity/garden area which include balconies for each flat ranging from 
8.1m2 to 179.8m2 for the future occupants are also considered acceptable. 
 

43. Overall, it is considered that the proposal would provide appropriate amenity space 
within the building curtilage for the future residents of the development. For these 
reasons, and subject to the management of the fenestration by way of appropriate 
condition(s), in the event that planning permission is granted, the proposal would not 
be significantly harmful to the amenities of neighbouring properties or future residents 
and there would be no conflict with Policies CSP18 and DP7 in this regard. 
 

Highways and parking 
 

44. There is no objection from the County Highway Authority (CHA) on grounds of highway 
safety, policy or capacity. The proposal would provide 12 unallocated parking spaces 
accessible via Landscape Road leading onto hardstanding area at the frontage of the 
building.  The proposed parking would be three spaces short of the Council’s adopted 
parking standards SPD which require 1.5 spaces each for one and two-bedroom flats.  
The application was accompanied by Transport Assessment which identifies the site 
as a highly sustainable location. The report confirms that the provision of 12 car 
parking spaces would be appropriate and sufficient for the development and in line 
with census data for ownership in the area.  

Page 23



 
45. Furthermore, the current proposal has benefitted from pre-application advice where 

guidance was given to the applicant to provide suitable justification in terms parking 
provision in any future planning application submission via a Transport Assessment 
and Travel Plan. With no objection raised by the CHA on highway safety, policy or 
capacity grounds, it is considered that the proposals would not have significant 
adverse impact on highway safety to warrant the refusal of planning permission. 
For these reasons there would be no conflict with Policies CSP12 and DP5. 
 

 
Trees and Landscaping 
 
46. Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy, DP7 and DP8 of the Local Plan require all 

developments to include landscaping proposals and to respect and retain existing 
landscape features such as trees, hedges and shrubs. Also, to provide for suitable 
new planting, trees, and boundary treatments to enhance the appearance, 
character and amenity    of the site from the outset.   
 

47. Currently, the site contains a number of significant trees, vegetation along all the 
boundaries of the site. Notwithstanding the above, the site is outside any conservation 
area and not subject to a Tree Preservation Order; therefore, trees on site are not 
afforded any statutory protection. The submitted site Tree Survey Plan shows the 
retention of the existing vehicular access via Landscape Road. This includes the 
removal of a number of trees particularly at the frontage of the site.  The Tree Officer 
has indicated that none of these trees are of such importance in a policy sense to raise 
objection which could be sustained at a planning appeal. The Tree Officer has gone 
further and indicated that in terms of the retained trees, which are growing on the 
boundaries, there are several of high quality, and the largest (T20 Oak) will be quite 
tight with new building and works required within the root protection area. However, 
again, whilst this is not an ideal relationship, he does not consider it to be significant to 
warrant an objection.  
 

48. Furthermore, an Arboriculture Impact Assessment report was submitted with the 
application. The report indicates that all trees located on or within influencing distance 
of the proposed development area have been considered. The survey sets out 
recommendations and provides an indicative tree protection plan during construction 
and retention afterwards. 
 

49. The recommendations in the arboricultural report for increased diversity of species, 
including the provision of non-native tree species is essential in order to increase 
resilience to recent pressure on our tree population from disease are supported. 
Significant post development pressure on the retained trees is not envisaged. Overall 
there is no objection in relation to the tree works and planting on the site subject to the 
approval of landscaping and planting details and this could be managed by way of 
planning condition in the event that planning permission is granted. 
 

50. For these reasons the proposal would respect and reflect the character and 
appearance of the site, its setting and local context and there would be no conflict with 
Policies CSP18, DP7 and DP8 in this regard. 

 
Biodiversity and nature conservation 
 

51. The presence of protected species is a material consideration, in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework, Natural Environment & Rural Communities 
(NERC) Act 2006 (section 40), Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as well as Circular 

Page 24



06/05. In the UK the requirements of the EU Habitats Directive is implemented by the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (the Conservation 
Regulations 2010). Where a European Protected Species (‘EPS’) might be affected by 
a development, it is necessary to have regard to Regulation 9(5) of the Conservation 
Regulations 2010, which states: “a competent authority, in exercising any of their 
functions, must have regard to the requirements of the Habitats Directive so far as they 
may be affected by the exercise of those functions.” The Conservation Regulations 
2010, (Regulation 41) contains the main offences for EPS animals, however the 
existing site and development is such that there is not a reasonable likelihood of EPS 
being present on site nor would an EPS offence be likely to occur.  
 

52. The site itself is not identified as one of particular nature conversation or biodiversity 
importance however the site and/or the buildings on the site may provide such habitat, 
especially given the age and the condition of the buildings and their proximity to 
surrounding trees, some of which are protected and/or form part of the nearby areas 
of (ancient) woodland. The application was accompanied by an ecological report 
prepared by Native Ecology which evaluates the ecological importance of the site.  The 
report outlines a number of protected and notable species that could be present at 
the site. Following this assessment, mitigation measures are proposed, which will 
make the development site suitable for the natural environment and will therefore 
not carry any ecological risks.  The report also, proposes several enhancement 
measures such as the inclusion of bird and bat boxes as well as incorporating 
native and nectar rich plants in the landscaping of the site. 
 

53. It is considered that subject to the recommended conditions the proposal would not 
conflict with Core Strategy Policy CSP17 and Detailed Policy DP19. 
 

Flood risk and Drainage 
 

54. The site does not lie within an Environment Agency Flood Zone 2 and 3 (the most 
severe levels of flood risk) although there are recorded 1 in 100 year and 1 in 1000 
year flood events. Although the proposal is not for major development as much of the 
site is currently undeveloped and as the existing building would be demolished and 
removed it would offer opportunity for the applicant to incorporate a sustainable 
drainage system (SuDS).   
 

55. The applicant has submitted Surface Water and Foul Water Management Strategy 
prepared by Herrington Consulting in support of the proposed development. In 
summary, the report states that the proposed development will connect to the public 
sewer system as the most suitable solution    for draining the site.  The report goes 
further and states that ground investigations be undertaken at the detailed design 
stage in respect of SUD as a solution for managing surface water runoff in 
accordance with local plan policy DP21. 
 

56. It is considered that the proposal is acceptable and complies with Detailed Policy DP21 
subject to the imposition of conditions recommended by the County Flood Officer and 
the Environment Agency. 
 

Contamination 
 

57. The site currently comprises a three-storey residential property with a detached double 
garage and associated areas of parking and amenity areas.  It is proposed that the 
existing building will be demolished and replaced with a new apartment building.  The 
application was accompanied by Phase 1 Geo-Environmental Desk Study.  The 
report confirms that there are no contaminant linkages which will pose potentially 

Page 25



unacceptable risks to future site users or the environment.  The Environment 
Agency has assessed the information submitted and raised no objection subject 
to the imposition of recommended conditions. 
 

 
 
Renewable energy 
 

58. Policy CSP14 (Sustainable Construction) of the Core Strategy requires all new 
residential development on sites of 10 or more dwellings to achieve a minimum 20% 
reduction in carbon emissions (below the normal requirements set by the Building 
Regulations) through the incorporation of on-site renewable energy. 
 

59. The assessment report submitted with the application concludes the renewable 
technologies incorporated into the scheme will reduce the emissions by 20.5% 
which exceeds the Local Plan requirement of a 20% reduction. This will be 
achieved through the provision of photovoltaic panels and energy efficient design 
measures in accordance with Policy CSP14.  Nonetheless, it would be reasonable 
and necessary to require the technology to be installed and retained for its specified 
use and this could be managed by way of planning condition in the event that planning 
permission is granted. 

 
Refuse and cycle storage 
 

60. The proposal includes the erection of two small detached refuse and cycle store at the 
frontage of the site in accordance with CSP12, CSP18 and DP5 and DP7.  The 
proposed refuse storage building would be sited at the frontage close to the vehicle 
access with external dimensions of approximately 4.2m wide x 2.06m deep.  The 
proposed cycle store would be sited close to the east boundary of the site adjacent to 
the car parking area. The proposed external materials would be timber boarding with 
roof shingles. Details can be conditioned to ensure the materials are appropriate in the 
interest of amenity and in accordance with Policy CSP18 and DP7.  
 

Other matters 
 

61.  Objections have been received from Warlingham Parish Council and from the 
neighbouring residents relating to impact of the development on the character and 
appearance of the site and the wider locality.  These matters have been addressed in 
the report.  Other concerns raised by residents relate to overlooking and loss of privacy 
and insufficient parking have also been addressed in the report.  With regard to noise, 
disturbance, the comings and goings of the future occupants of the development, the 
Council’s Environmental Health Officer has raised no objection and the scale of the 
development, in this context, is not considered excessive to result in significant harm. 

 
Planning Balance 
 

62. Section 38(6) PCPA 2004 states that “if regard is to be had to the development plan 
for the purpose of any determination to be made under the planning Acts the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise”. As identified earlier in this report the proposed 
development is acceptable in principle in accordance with the development plan, being 
residential development, in a defined Category 1 settlement area in Warlingham. The 
development plan is up to date and carries substantial weight. The NPPF advises that 
in such circumstances, a development which is not in conflict with it should be granted. 

Page 26



This demonstrates the primacy of the development plan in the plan led system and the 
need for significant weight to be accorded to up to date development plans. 
 

63. Officers recognise that the proposed development would provide material benefits, 
notably the provision of additional market housing; which this is afforded significant 
weight as Tandridge District Council currently cannot demonstrate a five-year housing 
land supply and the five additional dwellings albeit a small amount would overall 
increase the housing requirement for Tandridge. The development will also bring 
associated support to the local economy, but again this afforded limited weight given 
the number of dwellings. 
 

64. In addition, the development is CIL liable and will attract New Homes Bonus payments 
and as set out in Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act (as amended by 
Section 143 of the Localism Act) these are local financial considerations which must 
be taken into account, as far as they are material to the application in reaching a 
decision. It has been concluded that the proposal accords with the Development Plan 
and whilst the implementation and completion of the development will result in a local 
financial benefit this is not a matter that needs to be given significant weight in the 
determination of this application.  

 
65. Carefully weighing up all of the material considerations it is concluded that the there is 

no clear conflict with the development plan policies and the benefits clearly outweigh 
the harmful impact of the development. 

 
Pre-commencement conditions 
 

66. Pursuant to the Town and Country Planning (Pre-commencement Conditions) 
Regulations 2018, the local planning authority must obtain the written agreement of 
the applicant to the terms of any pre-commencement condition recommended before 
it can be imposed on any planning permission granted. The applicant has been notified 
and confirmed his agreement, on behalf of his client, in writing. 

 
Conclusions 
 

67. The principle of residential development is considered acceptable in a location 
identified in the adopted local plan as Category 1 Settlement area. The proposal would 
not detract from the character and appearance of the site and that of its immediate 
local setting and context and there would be no significant harm to neighbouring 
residential amenities.  Furthermore, the supporting technical information has confirmed 
that the development's impact on ecology, drainage strategy and also confirms the 
development is acceptable in relation to matters of energy, sustainability and 
contamination. 
 

68. The proposals would deliver a development of 10 dwellings which would contribute 
to the District's housing supply and delivery statistics. The proposal accords with 
all relevant planning policies    and as such it is recommended that planning 
permission be granted subject to the conditions below. 
 

69. The recommendation is made in light of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) and the Government’s Planning Practice Guidance (PPG).  It is considered 
that in respect of the assessment of this application significant weight has been given 
to policies within the Council’s Core Strategy 2008 and the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 
2 – Detailed Policies 2014 in accordance with paragraph 213 of the NPPF. Due regard 
as a material consideration has been given to the NPPF and PPG in reaching this 
recommendation. 

Page 27



 
70. All other material considerations, including third party comments, have been 

considered but none are considered sufficient to change the recommendation. 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION    PERMIT subject to the following conditions 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the expiration of 3 
years from the date of this permission. 

 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. This decision refers to drawings numbered P003 and P004 scanned on 10th February 

2021, P001 (including the red-edged site plan) scanned on 11th February 2021, P006, 
P007, P008, P009, P100, P101, P102 (Proposed Second Floor Plan), P102 (Proposed 
Roof Plan), P104 (Schedule of Accommodation), P104 (GIAF), P106, P107, P200, 
P003 (Proposed Reverse Diagram), P006 (Existing Site Plan & Tree Impact), P007, 
P201, P202, P203, P204, P205, P206, P300, P207, P301, P302, P303, P304, 
P305,S20/7549/01, LR/TPP/1781-03-A, LR/TRP/1781-02-A, LR/TSP/1781-01 
scanned on 16th February 2021. The development shall be carried out in accordance 
with these approved drawings.  There shall be no variations from these approved 
drawings. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the scheme proceeds as set out in the planning application 
and therefore remains in accordance with the Development Plan. 

 
3. Prior to any works taking place above ground level, particulars and/or samples of 

materials to be used on the external faces of the development hereby permitted shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the District Planning Authority and the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the new works harmonise with the surrounding properties to 
accord with Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Polices 2014 
and Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008. 
 

4. Prior to any works taking place above ground level, full details of both hard and 

soft landscape works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. These details 

shall include:  

 proposed finished levels or contours 

 means of enclosure 

 car parking layouts 

 other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas 

 boundary treatments  

 hard surfacing materials 

 details of any SuDS measures 

 location and appearance of refuse stores 

 location and appearance of cycle and bin store 

 External lighting columns 

Page 28



 minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, other storage units, 

signs, other lighting etc.).  

Details of soft landscape works shall include all proposed and retained trees, hedges 

and shrubs; ground preparation, planting specifications and ongoing maintenance, 

together with details of areas to be grass seeded or turfed.  Planting schedules shall 

include details of species, plant sizes and proposed numbers/densities. All new planting, 

seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out 

in the first planting and seeding season following the completion or occupation of any 

part of the development (whichever is the sooner) or otherwise in accordance with a 

programme to be agreed.   

Any trees or plants (including those retained as part of the development) which within a 

period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed, or, in the 

opinion of the Local Planning Authority, become seriously damaged or diseased shall 

be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless 

the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. The hard landscape 

works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of the development.  

Reason: To maintain and enhance the visual amenities of the development in 

accordance with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy 

DP7 and DP9 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 

5. No development shall commence above ground level until further details of the 
proposed renewable energy technology to be incorporated into the scheme showing 
the location and how the development would satisfy the 20% reduction of carbon 
emissions have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The renewable energy provision shall thereafter be implemented and 
retained in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure on-site renewable energy provision to enable the development to 
actively contribute to the reduction of carbon dioxide emissions in accordance with 
Policy CSP14 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008. 

 
6. No development shall start until the tree protection measures detailed within the 

approved Tree Protection Plan (LR/TPP/1781-03-A) and Arboricultural Method 
Statement have been implemented. Thereafter these measures shall be retained and 
any specified arboricultural supervision or staging of works strictly adhered to 
throughout the course of development and shall not be varied without the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
In any event, the following restrictions shall be strictly observed unless otherwise 
agreed by the Local Planning Authority: 
 
(a) No bonfires shall take place within the root protection area (RPA) or within a 
position where heat could affect foliage or branches. 
(b) No further trenches, drains or service runs shall be sited within the RPA of any 
retained trees.  
(c) No further changes in ground levels or excavations shall take place within the 
RPA of any retained trees. 
 
Reason: To prevent damage to trees in the interest of the visual amenities of the 
area in accordance with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 
and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 

Page 29



 
 

7. No further trees or hedges shall be pruned, felled or uprooted during site preparation, 
construction and landscaping works [except as shown on the documents and plans 
hereby approved] without the prior written consent of the Local Planning 
Authority. Any retained trees or hedges which within a period of 5 years from the 
completion of the development die are removed, or, in the opinion of the Local 
Planning Authority, are dying, becoming diseased or damaged shall be replaced by 
plants of such size and species as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To prevent damage to trees in the interest of the visual amenities of the 
area in accordance with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 
and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 

 
 

8. No part of the development shall be first occupied unless and until the proposed 
modified vehicular access to Landscape Road has been constructed and provided with 
visibility splays in accordance with the approved plans and thereafter the visibility 
zones shall be kept permanently clear of any obstruction over 1m high. 
 

Reason: To ensure the development does not prejudice highway safety nor cause 

inconvenience to other highway users in accordance with Policy CSP12 of the 

Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 

2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 

9. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until space 

has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans for vehicles to 

be parked and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave the site in forward 

gear. Thereafter the parking and turning areas shall be retained and maintained for 

their designated purposes. 

Reason: To ensure the development does not prejudice highway safety nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users in accordance with Policy CSP12 of the 
Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: 
Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014 and Section 9 'Promoting Sustainable Transport' in 
the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. 

10. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until at least 10 
of the available parking spaces are provided with a fast charge socket (current 
minimum requirement: 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230 v AC 32 amp single 
phase dedicated supply) in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter retained and maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development provides adequate vehicular and pedestrian 
access in the interest of highway safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway 
users to accord with the objectives of the NPPF (2019), and to satisfy Policy CSP12 of 
the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: 
Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

11. No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management Plan, 
to include details of  

(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors 

Page 30



(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials 

(c) storage of plant and materials 

(d) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the approved 
details shall be implemented during the construction of the development. 

Reason: In the interests of safety, protecting the amenity of local land uses, 
neighbouring residents and highway safety and in accordance with Policy CSP12 of 
the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP5 of the Tandridge Local Plan: 
Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014.The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the timing 
of compliance is fundamental to the development permitted and that the permission 
ought to be refused unless the condition is imposed in this form. 
 

12. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until the 
secure parking of bicycles (and access thereto) within the development site has 
been provided in accordance with the approved plans and then retained and 
maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. The provision shall 
thereafter be kept available for parking at all times.  
 
Reason: To ensure adequate dedicated provision for cycle parking space within the 
site to allow vehicles to draw off and park clear of the highway to minimise danger, 
obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining highway in accordance with 
Policy CSP12 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP5 of the 
Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 
 

13. Notwithstanding the details in the Phase 1 Geo-Environmental Desk Study submitted 

with the application, if during development, contamination not previously identified is 

found to be present at the site no further development (unless otherwise agreed in 

writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until a remediation 

strategy detailing how this contamination will be dealt with has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation strategy shall be 

implemented as approved. 

 
Reasons: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at 
unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution 
from previously unidentified contamination sources at the development site in line with 
paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

14. Notwithstanding the details in the Phase 1 Geo-Environmental Desk Study submitted 

with the application, no infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is 

permitted other than with the written consent of the Local Planning Authority. The 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at 
unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water 
pollution in line with paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework. Please 
contact me should you wish to discuss the above. 

 

15. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of the design of a 

surface water drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

planning authority. The design must satisfy the SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with 

the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial 

Statement on SuDS. The required drainage details shall include: 

Page 31



 

a) The results of infiltration testing completed in accordance with BRE Digest: 365 
and confirmation of groundwater levels. 

b) Evidence that the proposed final solution will effectively manage the I in 30 & I 
in 100 (+40% allowance for climate change) storm events, during all stages of 
the development. If infiltration is deemed unfeasible, associated discharge 
rates and storage volumes shall be provided using maximum discharge rates 
in accordance with Table 5.6 of the approved document (Surface Water and 
Foul Water Management Strategy — Issue 2, Herrington Consulting Ltd, 
January 2021). 

c) Detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a finalised 
drainage layout detailing the location of drainage elements, pipe diameters, 
levels, and long and cross sections of each element including details of any 
flow restrictions and maintenance/risk reducing features (silt traps, inspection 
chambers etc.). If infiltration is proposed confirmation is required of a 1m 
unsaturated zone from the base of any proposed soakaway to the seasonal 
high groundwater level and confirmation of half-drain times. 

d) A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design 
events or during blockage) and how property on and off site will be protected 
from increased flood risk. 

e) Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes for 
the drainage system. 

f) Details of how the drainage system will be protected during construction and 
how runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be 
managed before the drainage system is operational. 

Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or 
off site in accordance with Policy DP21 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – 
Detailed Policies 2014. 

16. Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried out by a 
qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. This must demonstrate that the surface water drainage system has been 
constructed as per the agreed scheme (or detail any minor variations), provide the 
details of any management company and state the national grid reference of any key 
drainage elements (surface water attenuation devices/areas, flow restriction devices 
and outfalls), and confirm any defects have been rectified. 
 
Reason: To ensure the Drainage System is designed to the National Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for SuDS and in accordance with Policy DP21 of the Tandridge 
Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014.  
 

17. The four windows on the first floor rear elevation facing number 6 Narrow Lane 
(shown on drawing no. P203), shall contain no means of opening (unless any opening 
part of the window at least 1.75 metres above the finished floor level of the room it 
serves) and the glass shall be an obscure glazed type at least level 3 glass as defined 
in the 'Pilkington Textured Glass Range' and retained thereafter in perpetuity.  
 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining occupiers and in accordance 
with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 and Policy DP7 of 
the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



Informatives: 
 

1. Condition 2 refers to the drawings hereby approved. Non-material amendments can 
be made under the provisions of Section 96A of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 and you should contact the case officer to discuss whether a proposed 
amendment is likely to be non-material. Minor material amendments will require an 
application to vary condition 2 of this permission. Such an application would be made 
under the provisions of Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. Major 
material amendments will require a new planning application. You should discuss 
whether your material amendment is minor or major with the case officer. Fees may 
be payable for non-material and material amendment requests. Details of the current 
fee can be found on the Council’s web site. 
 

2. The development permitted is subject to a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) liability 
for which a Liability Notice will be issued. It is important that you ensure that the 
requirements of the CIL Regulations are met to ensure that you avoid any unnecessary 
surcharges and that any relevant relief or exemption is applied. 
 

3. 1)It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that the electricity supply is sufficient 
to meet future demands and that any power balancing technology is in place if 
required. Please refer to: http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-
electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html for guidance and further information on charging 
modes and connector types. 
 

4. Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge developers 
for damage caused by excessive weight and movements of vehicles to and from a site. 
The Highway Authority will pass on the cost of any excess repairs compared to normal 
maintenance costs to the applicant/organisation responsible for the damage. 
 

5. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried from the 
site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned wheels or badly loaded 
vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, wherever possible, to recover any expenses 
incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing highway surfaces and prosecutes persistent 
offenders. (Highways Act 1980 Sections 131, 148, 149). 
 

6. The applicant is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway works 
required by the above conditions, the County Highway Authority may require 
necessary accommodation works to street lights, road signs, road markings, highway 
drainage, surface covers, street trees, highway verges, highway surfaces, surface 
edge restraints and any other street furniture/equipment. 

 
7. The applicant is advised that if the proposed site works affect an Ordinary 

Watercourse, Surrey County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority should be 
contacted to obtain prior written Consent. More details are available on our website. 
If proposed works result in infiltration of surface water to ground within a Source 
Protection Zone the Environment Agency will require proof of surface water treatment 
to achieve water quality standards. 
If there are any further queries please contact the Flood Risk Asset, Planning, and 
Programming team via SUDS@surreycc.gov.uk. Please use our reference number 
in any future correspondence. 
 

 

 

Page 33

http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html


This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100018265

17 Landscape Road, Warlingham, CR6 9JB Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
ITEM 6.2 
 
Application: 2021/137 
Location: 13 Wolfs Wood, Hurst Green, Oxted, RH8 0HN 
Proposal: Erection of vehicle crossover and hardstanding 
Ward: Oxted South 
 
Decision Level: Committee 
 
Constraints – Urban, AWOOD within 500m, Surface Water 1 in 100 & 1 in 1000, Biggin 
Hill Safeguarding 
 
RECOMMENDATION: RESOLUTION TO PERMIT SUBJECT TO FULL 
COUNCIL 
 

1. This application is reported to the Planning Committee as the applicant is 
Tandridge District Council. 
 

Summary 
 

2. Planning permission is sought for the formation of a vehicular crossover and 
hardstanding. The crossover itself would be located on the eastern side of the 
highway and would be in association with a new hardstanding that would cut 
across existing green space in the form of a crescent around which no’s. 11-23 
(odds) Wolfs Wood are set. This would then connect with a new permeable 
hardstanding within the curtilage of No.13 Wolfs Wood. 
 

3. Whilst the proposal would reduce the amount of green space forward of the 
dwellings in the vicinity, the harm this would have on the character and 
appearance of the area is considered limited given the modest length of the 
driveway and also the presence of other dropped kerbs and longer driveway 
lengths in the crescent. There would be no unreasonable level of harm to the 
amenities of neighbouring properties and no objection is raised in highways 
terms. The proposal would provide off-street parking for the property which 
would make a small contribution to relieving the stress of on-street parking in 
the area. As such, the recommendation is for a resolution to grant planning 
permission subject to Full Council. 

 
Site Description  
 

4. The application site comprises a mid-terrace, two storey dwelling located on 
the eastern side of Wolf’s Wood and set behind a grass crescent. The area is 
residential in character, forming part of the larger development with a consistent 
layout and design.  

 
Relevant History 
 

5. No planning history. 
 
Key Issues 
 

6. The key issues relate to the impact of the proposal on character and 
appearance, residential amenity and highways and parking provision. 

 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6.2



 
 
Proposal  
 

7. Planning permission is sought for the formation of a dropped kerb and 
driveway/hardstanding to serve No.13 Wolf’s Wood. The dropped kerb would 
have a width of 4.6 metres. The connecting crossover would extend over the 
two existing paths and grass and link to the permeable hardstanding in the 
curtilage of No.13 which would measure 4.4 metres in width and between 5.25 
metres and 7.6 metres in depth. 

 
Development Plan Policy 
 

8. Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 – Policies CSP1, CSP12, CSP18 
 

9. Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014 – Policies DP1, DP5, 
DP7, DP22 

 
10. Woldingham Neighbourhood Plan 2016 – Not applicable  

 
11. Limpsfield Neighbourhood Plan 2019 – Policies LNP1, LNP3, LNP8, LNP13 

 
12. Caterham, Chaldon and Whyteleafe Neighbourhood Plan – Referendum 

version (Regulation 18) (2020) – Not applicable 
 

13. Emerging Tandridge Local Plan 2033 – Policies TLP01, TLP02, TLP06, TLP18, 
TLP37, TLP38, TLP50 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs), Supplementary Planning Guidance 
(SPGs) and non-statutory guidance  
 

14. Tandridge Trees and Soft Landscaping SPD (2017) 
 

15. Surrey Design Guide (2002)  
 
National Advice 
 

16. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) 
 

17. Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)  
 

18. National Design Guide (2019) 
 
Statutory Consultation Responses 
  

19. County Highway Authority – The proposed development has been considered 
by the County Highway Authority who having assessed the application on 
safety, capacity and policy grounds recommends the following conditions be 
imposed in any permission granted (as set out at the end of this report). 

 
20. Oxted Parish Council – no comments received. 

 
Non-statutory Advice Received 
 

21. None sought. 
 

Page 38



 
 
 
TDC advice  
 

22. None sought. 
 
Other Representations 
 

23. Third Party Comments:   
 

 Queries regarding applicant being TDC 

 Would the works interfere with services, manhole stability? 

 Concern with flooding and surface water onto neighbouring property 

 Has the footpath access and pavement crossing been approved by Highways 
and a license issued? 

 Are they using Council approved contractors for the work 

 Is the hardstanding for a standard car and not a lorry or high sided vehicle as 
otherwise would obstruct light  

 Concern about proximity due to noise from banging of car doors 

 Contamination of water courses 

 Concerns regarding reduction of path access to neighbouring properties and 
shared alleyway and perimeter fence needed to separate path from properties 

 Would paving the remaining area of the front garden require planning 
permission and, if not, can a caveat be used stating no further extension of the 
driveway can be made 

 Concerns about vehicle maintenance taking place on the road by the applicant 
and if directly in front of the house noise will be directly under bedrooms, living 
areas etc of neighbouring properties 

 Request for conditions including; 
o a reasonable limit to times when a car may be worked on in the driveway 

and no excessive noise,  
o a new low fence between the driveway and common pathway to prevent 

a car being partly parked on the path and to prevent car parts or refuse 
impeding use of the path,  

o restricting cars to the new driveway and not surrounding grass. 
 
Assessment  
 
Principle of Development 
 

24. The site is located in the urban area where there is no objection in principle to 
new development. As such, no objection is raised in respect of Policy CSP1 of 
the Core Strategy (2008) and Policy DP1 of the Local Plan (2014). 

 
Character and Appearance 
 

25. Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy requires new development to be of a high 
standard of design that must reflect and respect the character, setting and local 
context, including those features that contribute to local distinctiveness. 
 

26. Policy DP7 of the Local Plan provides the Council’s general policy for new 
development and requires proposals to respect and contribute to 
distinctiveness of the area in which it is located and to have a complementary 
building design and materials. 

 

Page 39



 
 

27. Policy LNP3 of the Limpsfield Neighbourhood Plan seeks to manage high 
quality design in the built-up area of Limpsfield and requires all development to 
be well designed and to reflect the distinctive character of the different parts of 
the Parish. 
 

28. The proposal would require the formation of a dropped kerb on the highway of 
Wolf’s Wood and then the creation of a hardsurface over the existing grassed 
verge which would connect with the existing footpaths either side and lead to 
the new hardstanding in front of No.13 Wolf’s Wood. 
 

29. The proposal would as such result in the loss of some of the existing grass 
verge. However, this is not designated as local green space and while its 
retention would be desirable, given its small area and the presence of other 
driveways of greater length on this crescent, it is not considered that this 
proposal would result in significant harm which would be considered contrary 
to the above planning policies.   
 

30. The creation of off-street parking forward of the dwelling reflects the use of 
other front gardens in the immediate surroundings. There is thus no harm 
raised in terms of the character of the area and Policy CSP18 of the Core 
Strategy, Policy DP7 of the Local Plan and Policy LNP3 of the Limpsfield 
Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
Residential Amenities 

 
31. Policy CSP18 states that new development must not significantly harm the 

amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties by reason of overlooking, 
overshadowing, visual intrusion, noise, traffic and any other adverse effect.   

 
32. Policy DP7 part (6) states that proposals should not significantly harm the 

amenity of neighbouring properties by reason of pollution (noise, air or light), 
traffic, or other general disturbance. Part (7) of Policy DP7 states that proposals 
should not significantly harm the amenities and privacy of occupiers of 
neighbouring properties (including their private amenity space) by reason of 
overlooking or its overshadowing or overbearing effect. Policy DP22 relates to 
minimising contamination, hazards and pollution as a result of new 
development.  
 

33. The proposal would create a single parking space forward of the dwelling on 
the application site. The drawings annotate retained grass to the northern side 
and rear of the proposed hardstanding. The proposal, including the dropped 
kerb and access to the application site from the public highway, would be used 
by the occupants of the property. It is noted that the neighbouring property to 
the south also has a front driveway and the use of the front garden in the same 
manner would reflect the neighbour. The parking space would be separated 
from the front elevation of the dwelling by the retained grass area of approx. 
5.5 metres in depth. 
 

34. In terms of whether the proposal would result in significant harm to the 
amenities of neighbouring properties, the concerns of third parties have been 
considered. However, the use of the driveway and parking of vehicle/s on the 
hardstanding would not, in the opinion of officers, give rise to a level of harm 
that would be contrary to policies. Any noise associated with accessing 
vehicle/s on the driveway and lights from those vehicles would be momentary 
and given the layout of the hardstanding, would not be directed into 

Page 40



 
 

neighbouring properties, particularly given the boundary treatments and their 
heights which would limit light spill. 
 

35. With regards to the use of the driveway for non-residential purposes by the 
applicant, there is nothing within the application to substantiate this concern. 
Furthermore, it is not possible for the local planning authority to place 
conditions on the times of use of a domestic driveway and if the use of it were 
to become commercial, this would be a matter that would need to be reported 
to the Enforcement department and investigated. 
 

36. The proposal would provide off-street parking space for the occupants of the 
dwelling which would enhance their living environment. 
 

37. For the above reasons, no significant harm to the amenities of neighbouring 
properties in identified and, as such, the proposal would accord in this regard 
with Policy CSP18 of the Core Strategy and Policies DP7 and DP22 of the 
Local Plan (2014).   
 
Highways and Parking Provision  
 

38. Policy CSP12 of the Core Strategy relates to Managing Travel Demand and 
sets out that the Council will require new development to make improvements 
to existing infrastructure network where appropriate and have regard to 
adopted highway design standards and vehicle and other parking standards. 
 

39. Policy DP5 of the Local Plan states that development will be permitted where 
the proposal complies with the relevant Highway Authority’s and any other 
highways design guidance, does not unnecessarily impede the free flow of 
traffic on the existing network or create hazards, retains or enhances existing 
footpaths and cycleway links, provides safe and suitable access to the site. 
 

40. The County Highways Authority have reviewed the proposal and raised no 
highways policy, capacity or safety concerns. The proposal would provide off-
street parking provision for the occupants of the dwelling which would relieve 
some pressure for parking on the highway. The design of the crossover and 
hardstanding is considered appropriate. As such, no objection is raised in 
relation to Policy CSP12 of the Core Strategy or Policy DP5 of the Local Plan. 
 
Other Matters 
 

41. Third party comments not addressed in the above sections have been reviewed 
and noted. However, it is not possible for the planning function to address 
issues that are not directly related to the proposal. It is not reasonable or 
enforceable to seek to use conditions to control the type of vehicle that may 
parking on the hardstanding. Nor is it possible to seek to limit the use of the 
hardstanding by the occupants. As mentioned, should the hardstanding be 
used for commercial purposes that would need to be reported to the Council’s 
Enforcement department and should nuisance arise from the use of the 
hardstanding for non-residential purposes, that could also be reported to 
Environmental Health. At this stage, no such harms have been caused as a 
result of the proposal that does not yet exist.  
 

42. It is also not considered reasonable to remove any right from the property to 
hardsurface a greater area of their front garden in the future as no justification 
for this is identified. Such works, within the curtilage of the property, may not 
require planning permission. 

Page 41



 
 

 
43. In terms of impact on services, this is not a matter for the local planning 

authority and the applicant will be required to undertake their own investigations 
in this regard. The hardstanding of the parking space would be permeable and 
therefore there are no concerns in relation to run-off to neighbouring properties. 
The surfacing of the crossover over the grass verge is to be confirmed but 
would most likely reflect that of the footpath for accessibility reasons. Grass 
verge would remain to the side of the crossover which would be permeable. 
 

44. The third party request for a new fence between the parking space and footpath 
of the neighbouring property is noted. However, that is not considered 
reasonable or necessary. Should vehicles or material overhang the footpath, 
that would be a matter for the parties concerned to address.  

 
Conclusion  
 

45. The proposal is acceptable in principle and no harm is identified in respect of 
the character and appearance of the site and area or residential amenities. 
There would be no harm in respect of highway matters and no other harm is 
identified. As such, the recommendation is a resolution to grant planning 
permission subject to the referral of this application to Full Council given that 
Tandridge District Council is the applicant.  
 

46. Development of less than 100 square metres of new build that does not result 
in the creation of a new dwelling; development of buildings that people do not 
normally go into, and conversions of buildings in lawful use, are exempt from 
CIL. This application falls into one of these categories and therefore no CIL is 
payable. 

 
The recommendation is made in light of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) and the Government’s Planning Practice Guidance (PPG).  It is considered 
that in respect of the assessment of this application significant weight has been given 
to policies within the Council’s Core Strategy 2008 and the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 
2 – Detailed Policies 2014 in accordance with paragraph 213 of the NPPF. Due regard 
as a material consideration has been given to the NPPF and PPG in reaching this 
recommendation. 
 
All other material considerations, including third party comments, have been 
considered but none are considered sufficient to change the recommendation. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  RESOLUTION TO PERMIT subject to the following 
conditions and referral to FULL COUNCIL 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall start not later than the expiration of 3 
years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason:  To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004. 

 
2. This decision refers to drawing numbered 13WOL/01-A (including the red-

edged site plan scanned on 28th April 2021.  The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with these approved drawings.  There shall be no variations 
from these approved drawings. 

 

Page 42



 
 

Reason:  To ensure that the scheme proceeds as set out in the planning 
application and therefore remains in accordance with the Development Plan. 

 
3. The materials to be used on the external faces of the proposed development 

shall be in accordance with the details shown on the submitted application 
particulars.  

 
Reason: To ensure that the new works harmonise with the character of the 
area to accord with Policy CSP18 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 2008 
and Policy DP7 of the Tandridge Local Plan: Part 2 – Detailed Policies 2014. 

 
4. The proposed parking area shall not be first brought into use unless and until 

the proposed vehicular access to Wolfs Wood has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved plans. 

 
Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor 
cause inconvenience to other highway users and to meet the objectives of the 
NPPF (2019) and satisfy Policy CSP12 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 
(2008) and Policies DP5 and DP7 of the Tandridge District Local Plan: Part 2 
– Detailed Policies (2014). 

 
5. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until 

space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans 
for vehicles to be parked. Thereafter the parking area shall be retained and 
maintained for its designated purpose. 

 
Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor 
cause inconvenience to other highway users and to meet the objectives of the 
NPPF (2019) and satisfy Policy CSP12 of the Tandridge District Core Strategy 
(2008) and Policies DP5 and DP7 of the Tandridge District Local Plan: Part 2 
– Detailed Policies (2014). 

 
Informatives: 
 

1. Condition 2 refers to the drawings hereby approved. Non-material 
amendments can be made under the provisions of Section 96A of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 and you should contact the case officer to 
discuss whether a proposed amendment is likely to be non-material. Minor 
material amendments will require an application to vary condition 2 of this 
permission. Such an application would be made under the provisions of 
Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. Major material 
amendments will require a new planning application. You should discuss 
whether your material amendment is minor or major with the case officer. 
Fees may be payable for non-material and material amendment requests. 
Details of the current fee can be found on the Council’s web site. 
 

2. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry 
out any works on the highway. The applicant is advised that prior approval 
must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried 
out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, or verge to form a vehicle 
crossover to install dropped kerbs https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-
transport/permits-and-licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs  

 
3. The applicant is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway 

works required by the above conditions, the County Highway Authority may 
require necessary accommodation works to street lights, road signs, road 

Page 43

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/permits-and-licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/permits-and-licences/vehicle-crossovers-or-dropped-kerbs


 
 

markings, highway drainage, surface covers, street trees, highway verges, 
highway surfaces, surface edge restraints and any other street furniture 
equipment. 

 
4. There is a disabled parking bay adjacent to the proposed access that 

should not be blocked during works. 
 
 

Page 44



© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100018265

13 Wolfs Wood, Hurst Green, Oxted, RH8 0HN Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 29th April 2021
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on the 27th May 2021
	6 Applications for consideration by committee
	6.1 2021/173 - 17 Landscape Road, Warlingham, Surrey, CR6 9JB
	Report Plan - 2021.173

	6.2 2021/137 - 13 Wolf's Wood, Hurst Green Oxted, RH8 0HN
	Report Plan - 2021.137


